
 
AMENDMENT OF  

SOLICITATION 
 
1. AMENDMENT NO.  003 
 
  

 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE – 11/11/2021 
 
  

 
3.  
PAGE 1 OF 1 

 
4. ISSUED BY: Fluor-BWXT Portsmouth LLC 

P.O. Box 548 
3930 US Route 23 South 
Piketon, OH  45661 

 
5. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (Name, street ,county, 
state &,zip code) 
 
 
 

 
6. AMENDMENT OF (RFP) SOLICITATION 
NO.   
 
FBP21SC98813 
 

 
DATE  
 
 
11/11/21 

  
 7.  
The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 8. The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers  
___  is extended  _X__   is not extended. 
Offers must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of 
the following methods: 
 
(a) By completing Items 5 and 9, and returning one (1) copy of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on 
each copy of the offer submitted; or (c) By separate letter or e-mail which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment 
numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT 
OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER. If by virtue of this 
amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by e-mail or letter, provided each e-mail or 
letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified. 
 
8. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  
 
 
This amendment to the RFP, referenced above, is issued to provide the following: 
 
 
 

1. To provide responses for questions received –see attached 
 
 
 

 
9A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) 
 
 
 

 
10A. Fluor BWXT Portsmouth LLC 
 
Kelli Lore, Subcontract Administrator 

 
9B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR 
 
 
______________________________ 
(Signature of person authorized to sign) 

 
9C. DATE SIGNED 

 
10B.  
 
 
___________________________________ 
                   (Signature) 

 
10C. 
DATE                  
SIGNED  

 
 
Attachments:  



RFP RCT-IH Questions 

1. The cover letter says questions should be 

sent to Kelli Lore, but page 1 of the 

solicitation says Ashraf Greene is the 

contracts administrator.  Do questions go 

to both people? 

Ashraf Greene will be post-award contact.  

2. Is this a new requirement or is there and 

incumbent service provider? 

This is not a new requirement. There is an 

incumbent subcontractor. 

3. If there is an incumbent, do you require a 

transition plan to transition the existing 

staff? 

Yes. Reference L.1 B 

4. B.2 A. ii) states that we provide daily 

timesheets for approval and to see section 

G.  G.4 covers submission of 

invoices.  However, section H.87 says 

that this is a CLTR contract and no 

invoices will be required.  Do we provide 

timesheets daily or will all time and 

invoicing be done using CLTR? 

G.4 Covers submission of invoices.  

CLTR is just electronic, we expect daily time 

sheets to be recorded. However they are electronic 

reference in H.87. 

5. Section C.2 states FBP shall not exercise 

any supervision or control over service 

providers.  Does that mean we need to 

provide radiation protection supervisor 

and assign the daily work tasks? 

Our understanding is we will be providing 

supervision to the personnel while working on-

site. 

6. C.4, B bullet 1 says we need to provide a 

listing of failures to complete required 

training.  We will have access into your 

training system to review our staff 

records?  If not, how will we be made 

aware of any missing required training? 

We should be able to provide this access. 

7. C.6 says will shall provide an onsite 

project manager.  Can we invoice for this 

position?  If not, can we use a lead RCT 

No, cannot invoice, only for labor categories in 

section B.  



to perform some project management 

work and also support FPB in a lead RCT 

position? 

8. H.28 lists 12 site holidays.  Are the 

holidays 8 hours or 10 hours?  Should we 

include 96 hours or 120 hours of holiday 

in our fringe build up?  Are the hours 

paid?  Article XVI Sections 1 and 2 says 

holidays are not paid. 

12 site holidays for FBP personnel, they are 8hr 

days. However it is your responsibility to 

determine.  

9. H.33 shows travel as reserved.  Is travel 

an allowable ODC on this contract? 

No.  

10. Are there any Covid site access 

requirements that our staff will need to 

follow? 

Yes, FAR 52.223-99. 

11. H.64 EMCBC-H-1014 Required 

Insurance and Bonds item D lists 

performance and payment bond.  Is 

bonding required on this project? 

No.  

12. H.70 Employee Training references 

Section J.A, Attachment 7 and J.A, 

Attachment 18 but we do not see copies 

of these attachments.  Can you please 

provide them?   

Must be complete in 90 days.  

13. L.1 (b) bullet ask for a transition 

plan.  Can you please provide service 

times and number of staff expected to 

transition?   

Full transition must be complete within 90 days. 

14. L.6 lists the NACIS code as 562910.  Is 

this solicitation set aside for small 

business? 

No.  

15. What labor categories in J-17 apply to 

RCT and IH support?  Do Apprentice 

RCT & IH Techs labor categories and wage rates 

will be discussed between offeror and GPPMA. 



Wage Rates apply to Jr. RCTs per Article 

XII? 

16. J-P GPPMA Attachment 1 Article XIII 

requires double time pay but there is not a 

place to list a bill rate for double 

time.  Can you please add this as an 

applicable billing rate to table B.2? 

FBP does not anticipate double time hours to be 

worked. It would be handled through section H 

changes. 

17. J-9 GPPMA Article XVI states there are 8 

holidays but H.28 says 12. Which is 

correct? 

FBP observes 12 holidays - however 

responsibility of the offeror to coordinate holidays 

with NABTU covered under that agreement 

18. We have attempted to reach out to the 

local BCTC but have not received any 

calls back.  Do you have a specific 

contact within the Union that we should 

contact and speak with about the GPPMA 

as it relates to this project? 

Jim McGraw is the contact; 740-354-3224. 

19. Amendment 001 has a letter dated 

November 15, 2016 from Brent Booker to 

Fluor Maintenance Services on page 72 of 

74and is followed by an Addendum B on 

page 73 and 74.  The second bullet under 

“Items specifically excluded from the 

scope of this Agreement include but are 

not limited to the follow” on page 74 

states “Work of non-manual employees 

including but not limited to……..health 

and safety personnel, radiological 

technicians………..”  Since these items 

are specifically excluded from the 

GPPMA provided, is there an update that 

adds the type of requested support in this 

RFP back into the agreement?  If so, can 

GPPMA was recently modified to incorporate this 

requirement, a memorandum of understating will 

be provided to offeror.  



you please provide the agreement or 

addendum? 

 

20. Can the On-site Project Manager also dual 

hat as a lead RCT? 

Yes.  

21. What does the site use for hours per year 

per FTE? 

Total estimated required support hours - not a 

yearly hour ratio. 

22. Is there an incumbent work force? If so, is 

this project fully staffed? 

Yes, there are currently building trades RCT & IH 

techs working on the project - FBP RCT & IH 

Tech need change based on project requirements, 

fluctuates based on project need. 

23. What is FBP’s expectation for the 

timetable of transition? 

There will be a phase transition period to 

minimize any interruption - 90 day window for 

completion. 

24. What level of clearance is required for on-

site staff? 

Successful Offeror will be required to obtain a 

DOE Facility Clearance - please reference Tech 3 

in Section C. 

25. Who is responsible for providing the 

escorts for uncleared personnel? 

FBP. 

26. Attachment J-8 has not been included in 

the RFP. Please provide this attachment. 

The J-8 reference has been removed and Section 

H.18 has been updated.  

27. Will FBP provide on-site office space for 

the On-site Project Manager? 

Yes. 

28. Is per Diem allowable under this contract? 

If so, for how long? 

No.  

29. How many personnel and what labor 

categories are on the incumbent contract? 

Approximately: 8 Jr IH Techs, 1 Lead IH Tech, 4 

Sr. RCT’s, 2 Lead RCT’s, 30 Jr RCT’s 



30. Please provide the organizational charts 

for the incumbent contract.  

Organizational charts are unavailable.  

31. What is organizational makeup of the 

percentage based in-house personnel 

versus subcontractors on the incumbent 

contract? 

There are currently no FBP BT IH Techs. All are 

currently subcontracted. 

32. Is this contract designed for expansion 

and surge based on additional scope? 

This is an IDIQ contract requirements that 

fluctuates based on project needs. 

33. Should we anticipate any of these 

positions to be absorbed into the FBP in-

house organization? 

FBP will determine the whether this requirement 

will be subcontracted for FBP hire, based on 

project needs.  

34. Is there a no compete clause in this 

contract?  

No.  

35. What is the current turnover rate on the 

incumbent contract? 

Information not available.  

 

36. The due date for this proposal is currently 

11/11/21, which is a Federal holiday. 

Would FBP consider extending the due 

date to 11/15/21? 

 

Yes the date is 11/16/2021. 

37. Amendment 0001 Wage Determination: 

There are no labor categories that cover 

the Rad Techs or the IH labor categories. 

Please clarify how the Wage 

Determination is to be applied to this 

contract. 

Offeror needs to coordinate with NABTU, labor 

categories for RCT and IH Techs are covered by 

labor categories identified in the attached wage 

determination.  

38. Please confirm that FBP-employed 

RadTechs are members of the local USW 

and that subcontracted RadTechs under 

this RFP are not a part of the USW. 

FBP employs both USW and building trade rad 

techs. Rad techs under this RFP will be supporting 



Davis Bacon Act covered work and therefore will 

be represented by the NABTU. 

39. Does FBP plan to make all incumbents 

whole (i.e. pay the incumbents at their 

current compensation, hourly plus 3% 

annual increase.)? 

Unclear question. FBP will pay the fully burdened 

labor rate proposed by the successful offeror.  

40. Will rates be adjusted for the 

renegotiation rates with the union? 

No. The fully burdened labor rates will remained 

fixed through duration of the contract.  

41. Do ALL Labor Categories listed, 

currently considered Non-Exempt by the 

latest Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 

and subject to 1.5 times rate on overtime?  

The OT rate will be governed by the OT rate 

identified within the GPPMA. 

42. Can FBP make the current CBA rate 

structure, benefits and overall obligations 

available to the Offerors? 

Section H.18 identifies the NABTU as the POC 

for GPPMA related CBA requirements. 

43. What is the headcount and labor category 

of incumbent employees governed by this 

contract to be transitioned?  

Approximately 45.  

44. To correctly calculate the rates, a 

seniority list is needed? This should 

include the Labor Category for all 

employees to transitioned for wage and 

benefit calculations?  

Refer to NABTU and GPPMA.  

45. What is FBP’s prediction for the current 

headcount? Will it remain the same, 

increase or decrease? 

Headcount will fluctuate based on project needs.  

46. For cost purposes, will the current CBA 

with the wages, benefits and a seniority 

list be made available? 

Refer to NABTU and GPPMA for clarifications 

on wage and benefit requirements. 

47. It has been brought to our attention that 

not all Radcon employees are being paid 

at the USW-CBA pay scale. As per the 

This requirement is wholly separate from other 

Rad and IH tech agreements. This is not for USW 



CBA some of the “Incumbent 

Employees” who worked for the 

identified companies were kept whole and 

paid the same wage as earned with the 

other company. Will FBP honor this and 

make adjustments to pay any transitioned 

employees who make higher than the 

agreed rates. 

work. All questions related to wages and 

compensation should be directed towards 

NABTU.  

48. Will FBP supply a seniority list of 

incumbents to help calculate vacation?  

No.  

49. For incumbent employees that currently 

fill staff augmentation positions on the 

current contract, will subcontractors under 

the new contract be required to maintain 

the same or higher salary and benefits for 

these employees? 

Wages and benefit requirements must be within 

accordance with GPPMA and the NABTU.  

50. The current CBA in place requires the 

following to be a company paid benefit: 

- Accidental Death and Dismemberment 

Insurance  

- Long & Short-Term Disability Insurance 

- Shift differential  

Will this be a requirement to be 

considered when costing this solicitation? 

Or will FBP modify the contract to the 

CBA with USW 

FBP is unsure where the offeror is getting the 

referenced information. Only documents provided 

in the solicitation should be used for generating a 

proposal for this RFP. RCT and IH techs under 

contract will be supporting Davis bacon act 

covered work, therefore USW CBA is not 

applicable.  

51. Will FBP honor the Executive Order 

13706? 

Excerpt from current Wage 

Determination 

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, 

Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal 

Contractors, applies to all contracts 

The work covered under this contract is not 

covered by the Service Contract Act. RCT and IH 

techs under this contract are covered by the Davis 

Bacon Act.  



subject to the Service Contract Act for 

which the contract is awarded (and any 

solicitation was issued) on or after 

January 1, 2017. If this contract is 

covered by the EO, the contractor must 

provide employees with 1 hour of paid 

sick leave for every 30 hours they work, 

up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each 

year. Employees must be permitted to use 

paid sick leave for their own illness, 

injury or other health-related needs, 

including preventive care; to assist a 

family member (or person who is like 

family to the employee) who is ill, injured, 

or has other health-related needs, 

including preventive care; or for reasons 

resulting from, or to assist a family 

member (or person who is like family to 

the employee) who is the victim of, 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or 

stalking. Additional information on 

contractor requirements and worker 

protections under the EO is available at 

www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts. 

52. For incumbent employees that currently 

fill staff augmentation positions on the 

current contract, will subcontractors under 

the new contract be required to maintain 

the same or higher salary and benefits for 

these employees? 

 

Compensation and benefit requirements are 

provided through GPPMA and NABTU.  

53. Can FBP provide applicable current 

CBA/Bargaining Unit and any applicable 

amendments, changes and/or additions? 

Compensation and benefit requirements are 

provided through GPPMA and NABTU.  

http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts


54. What if the new Contractor and USW-689 

(Union) cannot come to an agreement due 

to the restraints of the awarded contract? 

This is a, “Lowest Price Technically 

Acceptable source selection process 

solicitation”?  

It was made clear during the Pre-bid and in the 

contract document that this is Davis Bacon Act 

covered work. Therefore is represent by the 

NABTU, not USW.  

55. Will it be required for all radiological 

personnel to join the Union or will they 

have the choice? 

All RCTs and IH techs must be coordinated 

through the GPPMA and the NABTU.  

56. Will there be multiple awards, or will this 

be a single award?  

FBP anticipates making a single award. However, 

FBP reserves the right to make multiple awards.  

57. Will there be a backup contract supplier? FBP anticipates making a single award. However, 

FBP reserves the right to make multiple awards. 

 

58. Please clarify which labor agreement 

pertains to the RCTs and IHTs covered by 

this contract.  Is the awardee expected to 

honor the incumbent employees’ labor 

agreement(s) or develop and engage a 

new agreement(s)?  

As the pre-bid and contract documents, referenced 

(Section H.18). This will be Davis Bacon Act 

covered work, and therefore will be represented 

by the NABTU.  

59. How many incumbent employees by labor 

category are expected to transition to this 

new contract?  

Approximately: 8 Jr IH Techs, 1 Lead IH Tech, 4 

Sr. RCT’s, 2 Lead RCT’s, 30 Jr RCT’s 

60. Neither DBA wage determination 

included in Addendum 1 has pay and 

fringe information for any classification 

of RCT or IHT – Can FBP please provide 

the current wage determination that 

includes these six labor categories?  

Refer to GPPMA and The NABTU. 

61. From which incumbent contract will 

RCTs and IHTs transition to this 

contract?  

Need clarification.  



62. Will successful offeror have to comply 

with the labor agreement specific to each 

incumbent’s RCTs and IHTs?   

The offeror will be required with the GPPMA and 

NABTU agreement.  
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